
LOWER PROVIDENCE TOWNSHIP 

MONTGOMERY COUNTY, PA 

 

 

Proclamation 

 
 

NATIVE AMERICAN HERITAGE MONTH 

  

WHEREAS, in 1990, President George H. W. Bush approved a joint resolution 
designating the month of November as a time for the nation to recognize Native 

American heritage; and  
 

WHEREAS, during the month, we celebrate the Indigenous peoples of North 
America, past and present, who have faced moments of profound triumph and tragedy 
alike; and  

 

WHEREAS, we recognize the rich traditions, invaluable cultural knowledge, 

contributions and sacrifices of the original stewards of the land, and pay tribute to the 
participation of Native Americans in all aspects of American society.  

 

NOW, THEREFORE, the Board of Supervisors of Lower Providence Township 
proclaims November as Native American Heritage Month to ensure the rich histories 

and contributions of Native Americans can thrive with each passing generation. 
 

 
 

___________________________________ 

Gary Neights, Chair 

 

Lower Providence Township  

Board of Supervisors 

 

November 17, 2022 

 

 

 

 



 

Lower Providence Township Board of Supervisors Meeting 
November 3, 2022 
 
 

Page 1 of 3 

 

   

LOWER PROVIDENCE TOWNSHIP 

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS BUSINESS MEETING 

November 3, 2022 

____________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

Call to Order: Chairman Neights called the hybrid live/virtual meeting to order at 7:06 p.m.  

 

Pledge of Allegiance 

 

Protocol for Hybrid Meetings: Chairman Neights provided an overview of the protocols for public 

participation for members of the public attending the meeting virtually over Zoom. 

 

Roll Call:   

a. The following Board members were in attendance: Chairman Neights, Vice Chair Coless, Supervisor 

Darby, and Supervisor MacFarland (via Zoom). Supervisor Sorgini was absent. 

b. Also in attendance were: E.J. Mentry, Township Manager; Lauren Gallagher, Township Solicitor; 

Tim Woodrow, Township Engineer, Mike Mrozinski, Community Development Director; Police 

Chief Michael Jackson, Rich Lafiata, Finance Director, and Student Representative Ashish 

Jeyapratap. 

 

Chairman’s Comments 

Chairman Neights announced that an executive session was held prior to the meeting on November 3, 

2022, to discuss legal and personnel matters.  

 

1) Presentations 

A) Student representative report – Ashish Jeyapratap 

B) 2023 proposed budget 

i) Mr. Mentry stated that many hours had been devoted to the budget process, starting 

in July and including 10 hours of public workshops. The vote to authorize advertisement of 

the proposed budget is the first official action in the process. Once advertised for the required 

20 days, adoption of the final budget and approval of tax rates is anticipated for the 

December 1st Board of Supervisors meeting.  He provided a summary of Township funds, 

noting a shortfall in the General Fund, the primary operating fund, of approximately 

$960,000. He explained that earned income tax provides 55% of the revenue for the General 

Fund. The majority of the fund is spent on staffing, wages and benefits, as is typical. 

ii) Mr. Mentry noted the Township’s strong reserves and said the Board and staff have begun 

planning on how to allocate these funds for long-term capital, infrastructure, and stormwater 

initiatives while maintaining “rainy day” funds. 

iii) Major themes and highlights of the proposed 2023 budget are: The start of a multi-year 

approach to address staffing shortages; funding for fire protection, EMS and library; 

stormwater management/MS4 requirements; capital equipment and projects; grant writing 

consultant; technology upgrades; Parks & Recreation facility and program improvements; 

increased road project funding; and increased pension and benefits costs. 

iv) It was noted that of the four taxes that make up a homeowner’s real estate taxes – Methacton 

School District, Montgomery County, Montgomery County Community College and Lower 

Providence, only 6.7% goes to the Township. 

v) Mr. Mentry said various tax increase options had been discussed at length at the public 

workshops. Recommended is “Option C” which covers a little more than half of the deficit 



 

Lower Providence Township Board of Supervisors Meeting 
November 3, 2022 
 
 

Page 2 of 3 

 

   

and pays for the increased staffing costs, inclusive of wages and benefits, which will be 

perpetual and increasing expenses each year.  It would mean an increase of about $62.80, or 

$5 per month, for the average taxpayer.  

vi) There was discussion about addressing the Township’s continuing structural deficit and the 

limited revenue streams.  

vii) MOTION: Chairman Neights made a motion to advertise the proposed 2023 budget as 

presented. Supervisor Darby seconded the motion. 

viii) There was no public comment. 

ix) The motion passed 4-0. 

 

2) Consent Agenda  

A) MOTION: Vice Chair Coless made a motion to approve the consent agenda, moving the 

minutes of the Board of Supervisors budget workshop of October 13, 2022 and business meeting 

of October 20, 2022 into the record. Chairman Neights seconded the motion. 

i) Vice Chair Coless requested that the October 13, 2022 workshop minutes be modified to 

include the total deficit amount in the proposed budget at that time. 

ii) There was no public comment. 

iii) The motion passed 4-0. 

 

3) Old Business 

A) Consideration of authorization to advertise a Human Relations Commission ordinance 

i) Solicitor Gallagher explained that the ordinance establishes a commission to facilitate 

communication and education in order to work through existing discrimination processes and 

mechanisms. 

ii) Supervisor MacFarland stated that the current draft of the ordinance was not substantially 

different from the version discussed at the August 18 meeting when he and Supervisor 

Sorgini had expressed concerns, noting that enforcement mechanisms are already in place on 

the state and federal levels and that a commission is not the proper tool. 

iii) MOTION: Chairman Neights made a motion to advertise an ordinance establishing a Human 

Relations Commission, Vice Chair Coless seconded the motion. 

iv) There was no public comment. 

v) The motion passed 4-0.  

B) Consideration of application for Conditional Use- HTC Associates, 3150 Ridge Pike 

i) Solicitor Gallagher explained that the Board would be voting to approve or deny the 

conditional use. If approved, the use would be subject to the conditions that were discussed 

and accepted at the conditional use hearing held October 20, 2022. The vote will be ratified 

by a written decision issued by the Board at a subsequent meeting. 

ii) MOTION: Chairman Neights made a motion to approve the conditional use application of 

HTC Associates for 3150 Ridge Pike subject to the written decision and conditions. Vice 

Chair Coless seconded the motion. 

iii) There was no public comment. 

iv) There motion passed 4-0. 

C) Consideration of Resolution 2022-30 granting request for waiver of land development from the 

Lincoln Center, 1100 Adams Avenue 

i) Chairman Neights noted that the Center had agreed to put in sidewalks where identified.  

ii) MOTION: Supervisor Coless made a motion to approve Resolution 2022-30 granting the 

request of the Lincoln Center for waiver of land development, seconded by Supervisor 

Darby. 



 

Lower Providence Township Board of Supervisors Meeting 
November 3, 2022 
 
 

Page 3 of 3 

 

   

iii) There was no public comment. 

iv) The motion passed 4-0.  

D) Consideration of Resolution 2022-31 granting request for waiver of land development from 

Streamlight, 30 Eagleville Road 

i) Solicitor Gallagher explained that the application involved the addition of a garage to the 

main building, but there is little to be reviewed in the land development process. She said the 

waiver is recommended by staff and the applicant appeared at the October 20, 2022 meeting. 

ii) MOTION: Supervisor Darby made a motion to grant the request of Streamlight for waiver of 

land development, seconded by Supervisor MacFarland. 

iii) There was no public comment. 

iv) The motion passed 4-0. 

 

4) New Business 

A) Discussion of waiver of land development request – Arrowhead Elementary School, 232 Level 

Road  

i) Mr. Mrozinski explained that during construction of the new school, the need arose for a 

detached shed. 

ii) In response to a question from Chairman Neights, Mr. Woodrow said the project underwent 

land development about two years ago and is still under a state NPDES stormwater permit. 

B) Authorization to order Public Works dump truck 

i) Mr. Mentry explained that the Public Works vehicle to be ordered is included in the proposed 

2023 budget. As it is unlikely to be removed from the final budget, staff is seeking pre-

authorization to place the order with no expenditure of funds. He cited the continuing 

backlog and long lead-times as the reason for the request. 

ii) MOTION: Chairman Neights made a motion to order the 2024 International HB507 

Municipal dump truck. Supervisor Darby seconded the motion. 

iii) There was no public comment. 

iv) The motion passed 4-0. 

C) Discussion of SALDO waiver application procedure 

i) Mr. Mentry said staff had prepared a procedural guide to provide to applicants seeking 

waiver of land development in order to standardize submission requirements. The procedure 

will be formalized in an ordinance to be considered at a future meeting. 

 

5) Announcements/Meetings 

A) The Board of Supervisors are looking for qualified residents interested in serving on the 

Township’s various boards and commissions. Details and instructions on submitting a letter of 

interest and resume can be found on the township website, lowerprovidence.org  

B) Nominations are being accepted for the annual Community Awards, recognizing a Citizen, 

Volunteer and Business of the Year. Details are posted on the township website. 

C) Election Day – November 8 

D) Sewer Authority – Nov. 14 at 4:30 p.m. 

E) Parks & Recreation Board – Nov. 15 at 7:00 p.m. 

F) Comprehensive Plan Steering Committee – Nov. 16 at 7:00 p.m. 

G) Environmental Advisory Council – Nov. 21 at 7:00 p.m. 

H) Library Board – Nov. 22 at 7:00 p.m. 

I) Planning Commission – Nov. 22 at 7:00 p.m. 

J) Zoning Hearing Board – Nov. 23 at 7:00 p.m. cancelled 

 



 

Lower Providence Township Board of Supervisors Meeting 
November 3, 2022 
 
 

Page 4 of 3 

 

   

6) Comments and other Business 

A) In response to Supervisor Coless, Mr. Mentry said the SALDO waiver guidelines will help the 

Board in the review and decision process. The ordinance to be drafted will have built-in 

thresholds for automatic exceptions and will memorialize the waiver process. 

B) Supervisor MacFarland asked if the Montgomery County coroner’s and/or archives buildings are 

occupied and if there were any conditions regarding the trail project and building occupancy.  He 

expressed disappointment with the Methacton School Board’s pending decision vote to demolish 

Audubon Elementary School.  

 

7) Courtesy of the Floor  

A) Sandy Harrison, Woodwinds Drive – Ms. Harrison expressed her concern with the PennDOT’s 

Ridge Pike and Germantown Pike intersection re-alignment project. As part of the project, the 

current entrance to her development will be closed and a new one will be opened that is close to 

her home that will be the main access to Germantown Pike. 

 

8) Adjournment 

A) MOTION:  Supervisor Darby made a motion to adjourn. Vice Chair Coless seconded the 

motion. The motion passed 4-0. The meeting adjourned at 8:40 p.m. 

 

Next Business Meeting:  November 17, 2022 @ 7:00 p.m. 

    December 1, 2022 @ 7:00 p.m. 



Minutes of Lower Providence Environmental Advisory Council Meeting – September 19, 2022 
 
The meeting began at 7:06 PM.  Council members Erin McCool, Amber Minnick, Douglas White, 
John Zollers, and Jessica Bell were present. 
 
1. Approval of Minutes. The minutes from the August 2022 meeting were approved 4-0, Mr. White 
making the motion for approval and Ms. Minnick seconding.  
 
2. Old Business 
 
a) Subcommittee Reports  
  
 Education / Communication 
  

1. Movie Night went well and there were leftovers available to be used at the Fall Festival. 
Ms. Panda had made flyers and Ms. Bell a poster for the occasion, along with other 
materials. Ms. Minnick recommended a shorter table be used in the future so children 
could more easily see the available materials. 
 
Ms. McCool noted that she had made contact with the new manager of Evansburg State 
Park Bethany Hare and discussed the possibility of joint stream cleanup and other events. 
Township resident Laura Winslow noted her participation in the recent stream trash 
cleanup and the prevalence of construction debris along Skippack Creek. According to Ms. 
McCool, Ms. Hare is well aware of the invasive species issues that plague Evansburg State 
Park. 
 
The Audubon event was partially rained out but some activities went on in spite of the 
weather, and more are tentatively planned for future dates.  
 
2. Discussion tabled due to the absence of Mr. Lulis, but Ms. McCool intends to discuss 
sustainability award further with Mr. Lulis. It was noted that an “honor roll” approach as 
opposed to a discrete and limited set of awards seemed to be preferred, although no 
formal vote was taken. 
 
3. Discussion of DEP grants was tabled. 
 
4.  a) Mr. White will be in charge of the EV area at the Fall Festival. 
 b) Mr. Zollers will oversee the stream table display. 
 c) Ms. McCool requested that anyone else available please advise to assist with 
staffing at  the Fall Festival. 

 
 Built Infrastructure / Ecological Restoration 
 
 Ms. McCool plans to follow up with township officials on plan to provide development 
plans to  the EAC for comment – not clear if this has been forgotten, or no recent plans have 
been  submitted.  
 



 Ms. Minnick discussed possibility of supporting Jean Akers and Parks & Recreation in 
efforts to  plant trees in township parks.  
 
 Ms. Winslow noted that baby trees are available in the thousands from various sources as 
part of  a discussion about plans by Martha’s Table community gardens to plant a “riparian 
buffer”. 
 
 Mr. Zollers will reach out to Township Supervisor Gary Neights to discuss possible 
presentation  to Board of Supervisors on use of road salts in the township and their deleterious 
effects on  waterways and groundwater.  
 
 Green Energy 
 
 Mr. White updated the Council on PECO’s efforts to help the township understand its 
electric  service accounts. One consultant was engaged to review the township’s electrical 
use and  recommended generally lighting improvements at the administrative building, 
public works  facilities, street lighting, etc. It was noted that the stadium lighting at Eagleville Park 
already  consists of efficient LED fixtures.  
 
 Other opportunities noted include installation of Level 1 electric car chargers at 
streetlights  (where safe and appropriate to do so), and rebates to install Level 2 chargers. Ms. 
Winslow noted  concerns about possible misuse of chargers for mischief in township parks.  
 
 Township resident Julia Nakhleh noted some other possible approaches to encouraging 
use of  green energy, including requirements for solar aspect in new construction to maximize 
solar  panel potential and installation of facilities for electric car chargers. Ms. Minnick noted an 
 example of a tabletop solar charger in adjacent townships for use of residents to charge 
cell  phones and other small items.  
 
 Stormwater - tabled 
 
b. Comprehensive Plan Update 
 
Tabled due to the absence of Mr. Lulis 
 
c. Budget suggestions for new year 
 
Obtaining a tablecloth specifically for use by the EAC (fabricated from sustainable materials) at 
township events was suggested.  
 
d. Review workplan and discuss project status 
 
Ms. McCool reminded the EAC to review the workplan for discussion. 
 
3. New Business. 
 
Ms. Winslow suggested the EAC develop a group e-mail account for residents to use. The 
suggestion came up in the context of the EPA’s recent review of the status of the Moyer’s Landfill 



superfund site (see below) and the apparent lack of attention paid to it, including leaks of 
contamination resulting from the intense rainfall of Hurricane Ida.  
 
4. Comments and Other Business. Ms. McCool noted that Colleen Falicki, who had previously 
presented to the EAC on composting, has seen her company grow since the presentation, and it 
may be more feasible to revisit the notion of curbside collection of compost.  
 
5. Courtesy of the Floor. Ms. Winslow noted her preparation of a speech on the status of Moyer’s 
Landfill and summarized the most important points, ending with a recommendation that the EAC 
follow up with PADEP / EPA 
 
Ms. Winslow also suggested some projects for Hoy Park, including ways to increase public 
awareness and knowledge of Skippack Creek, including markings in the parking lots with river 
heights, a flood gage, and a display board, and intends to develop the concepts some more for 
future discussion with the EAC.  
 
Ms. Nakhleh also recommended requiring provision of eight (8) connection wires for thermostats 
in the township to ease upgrading of thermostats to more sophisticated equipment.  
 
6. Adjournment. Ms. Minnick made a motion to adjourn the meeting, seconded my Ms. McCool, 
which passed 4-0.  



 

LOWER PROVIDENCE TOWNSHIP     

PARKS & RECREATION 

September 20, 2022, MEETING MINUTES 

 

1) Call to Order. 

A)  Amy Johnston-Smith called the meeting to order at 7:06 p.m.  

2) Pledge of Allegiance 

3) Roll Call: 

A) The following Parks & Recreation board members were in attendance: Amy Johnston-Smith, Beth Ann 

Mazza, Ray Lotfi, Erin Di Paolo, Michelle Brown, Stephanie Padula and Jean Akers.  

B) Also, in attendance:  Jane Delaney, Director, Student Rep. Riley McDonald, and Sameeksha Panda. 

Karen Hegedus, Recreational Superintendent was absent. 

4) Meeting Minutes: 

A) Review/Approve meeting minutes of July 19, 2022, with the revised update that Jean Akers was not in 

attendance for the July meeting. 

B)  MOTION: Erin Di Paolo made a motion to approve minutes of July 19, 2022, with the revised update, 

Beth Ann Mazza seconded the motion. The motion passed 9-0. 

 

5) Old Business  

A) Concert in the Park –August 21st– Todd O’s River of Dreams Tribute to Billy Joel – it was a beautiful 

night and well attended, approximately 200 people were in attendance, held at the Amphitheater. Wawa 

attended to give out pretzel, water, and bananas. Next year, more golf carts and maybe a port-a-potty. 

B) 9/11 Memorial Event – Small event, few attended due to the rain. Event will be held every 5 years. 

C) Movie in the Park – Clifford the Big Red Dog, September 16th, well attended for a cool evening at the 

beginning of the school year. 

 

6) New Business 

A) Welcome the new Student Representative – Sameeksha Panda, Senior at Methacton High School 

B) Discussion and consider reappointed member – Jean Akers term expires 12/20/22. Position will be 

vacant, after 12/20/22. 

(1) Jane Delaney thanked Jean for all that she has done. 

(2) Jean Akers does not wish to be reappointed. 

(3) Amy Johnston-Smith and Beth Ann Mazza both thanked Jean Akers for all her service. 

C) PARK UPDATES:  

(1) Water fountains were installed at Eagleville and Eskie Park 

(2) Path repairs were completed at Bittersweet Circle, Public Works department did the work. 

(3) Currently working on starting phase 2 at Eskie Park to plant trees in October. There will be nine 

trees at Eskie Park. 

(4) Currently working on the MARA foot bridge project. Board of Supervisors have just approved the 

project. 

 

D) UPCOMING PROGRAMS AND EVENTS 

(1) Community Yard Sale – Saturday, September 24th 8:00am – 2:00pm. We had 42 homes signed up 

for the yard sale. Yard signs were created for each homeowner. 

(2) 34th Annual Community Fall October 1st/Rain Date: October 2nd.  Karen Hegedus will reach put to 

members for volunteering at the event. 

(1) Brain storming for things for the older teens to do in the Fall. 

(3) 3rd Annual Trunk or Treat event – Saturday, October 22/Rain date October Sunday 23rd. 

 

7)   Board Comments  



 

A)  Amy Johnston-Smith, Chairperson, loves the idea of the student reps building up a social media 

content. Ask the student reps to create a social media content calendar. 

B) Beth Ann Mazza asked if we have a plan if the two events fall on the same day. (Fall Fest and LPFD 

event). Fall Fest will take priority. 

  

8)  Supervisor Liaison Report 

Cara Coless relayed that the Board of Supervisors approved the MARA bridge project. Budget meetings 

are scheduled for September 28th and October. Talking about a bucket of money set aside for grant. 

Comprehensive Plan is wrapping up soon.  

 

9) Motion to Adjourn. 

A) MOTION:  Beth Ann Mazza made a motion to adjourn. Michelle Brown seconded the motion. The 

motion passed 9-0. The meeting adjourned at 8:11 p.m. 

 

Next Meeting: October 18, 2022 



 

Lower Providence Township Planning Commission 
May 25, 2022 Meeting Minutes 
 

1 of 2 

LOWER PROVIDENCE TOWNSHIP 

PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING 

MAY 25, 2022 MEETING MINUTES 

 

1) Call to Order 

A) Chairman Kuberski called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. 

2) Roll Call: 

A) The following board members were in attendance: Mr. William Brooke, Ms. Ginny 

Kricun, Mr. Mark Kuberski, Mr. Frank McDonough, Mr. Patrick Neary, and Ms. Kristina 

O’Donnell.  

B) Also in attendance: Mr. Mike Mrozinski, Director of Community Development; Mr. Tim 

Woodrow, Township Engineer; Ms. Lauren Gallagher, Township Solicitor; John Miklos, 

Montgomery County Planning Commission; and Ms. Cara Coless, Board of Supervisors 

Liaison.   

3) Approval of Planning Commission Meeting Minutes of March 23, 2022 

A) MOTION: W. Brooke made a motion to move the minutes of March 23, 2022 into the 

record. Ms. Kricun seconded the motion. The motion passed 6-0.  

4) New Business 

A) Consideration of LD-22-02 Sketch Plan Land Development plans for BrightView 

Companies, 400 N Park Avenue. 

i) An overview of the preliminary sketch plan for the demolition of an existing structure 

along the road frontage and in its place the construction of a solar canopy for 

charging the new electric fleet at 400 N Park Avenue, parcel #43-00-10543-00-7, was 

provided by Len F Bradley III (Supervisor of Engineering) of RGS Associates with 

input from Jared N Klein of Blank Rome LLP, on behalf of the applicant, 

BrightView. Representatives from BrightView, Todd Chambers (Executive Vice 

President) and Frank Kuepper (Vice President Procurement & Fleet), provided 

information relating to the broader project plans, as well. 

The purpose of this presentation was primarily to provide opportunity to the Planning 

Commission to consider the proposal and to obtain from the Commission members 

recommendations on the proposal. Though there was no request for waivers at this 

time, the hope is to defer the sidewalk and curbing to the larger project. 

Questions and comments from the public were entertained following the presentation, 

including from Brian Jennings, 431 Alexandra Drive and Virginia Kirk Donahue, 

2003 Tennyson Ct. 

Next planned presentation is scheduled before the Board of Supervisors on Thursday, 

06/02/2022 at 7:00 PM. 

B.) Schuylkill Township Land Use Assumptions Report 

i.) Mike Mrozinski gave a general overview of the purpose of the report and solicited 

input from Commission members. 



 

Lower Providence Township Planning Commission 
May 25, 2022 Meeting Minutes 
 

2 of 2 

5) Old Business 

Roles and plans for the Planning Commission in 2022 were discussed briefly. 

6) Motion to Adjourn:  

A) MOTION: P. Neary made a motion to adjourn, seconded by W. Brooke. The motion 

passed 6-0. The meeting adjourned at 8:30 p.m.  

 

Next Scheduled Meeting: June 22, 2022 – 7:00 p.m. 



















LOWER PROVIDENCE TOWNSHIP 

COMMUNITY RELATIONS DEPARTMENT 

MONTHLY REPORT 

OCTOBER 2022 

Denise Walsh Page 1 of 2 11/7/2022 

 

HIGHLIGHTS 

 

Communications / Community Outreach 

 

▪ Website and social media posts of note: 

• 2023 Budget process webpage 

• Employment opportunity: Permit Administrator 

• Nominations sought for community awards 

• Share of Methacton School District Audubon Elementary vote notice 

• Police recognition & LPFD citation 

• Share of LPPD FB post – Police activity 

• BOS statement regarding vandalism at MARA complex 

• Share of LPPD FB post – bus stopping law 

• Perkiomen Watershed Conservancy Rain Barrel Workshop 

• EPA site work and information session – 960 Rittenhouse Rd 

• Office closure - Columbus Day 

• Monthly board/commission meetings 

• Good Morning LP posts 
 

 

I began work on responsibilities related to the Board of Supervisors’ reorganization: Various 

advertisements, 2023 meeting schedule, 2023 holiday schedule, Board and Commission term 

expiration chart, and consultants’ fee schedules. 

 

I took various photos to submit for the Business View feature on Lower Providence. 

 

Right-to-Know Office 

During the month, requests for information under the Right-to-Know Law were logged and 

processed, totaling 12 police and 14 non-police. (Copies of reports prepared as a result of an 

accident investigation conducted by the Lower Providence Township Police Department are now 

obtained through Carfax.) 

 

ON-GOING RESPONSIBILITIES 
 

Communications 

▪ Website 

▪  Facebook, Twitter and Instagram posts  

▪ Press releases 

▪ Constant Contact emails 

▪ Cable Access Channel posts 

▪ Trash & recycling concerns 

 

 



LOWER PROVIDENCE TOWNSHIP 

COMMUNITY RELATIONS DEPARTMENT 

MONTHLY REPORT 

OCTOBER 2022 

Denise Walsh Page 2 of 2 11/7/2022 

 

 

Administration 

 

▪ Weekly email to Board of Supervisors with informational items 

▪ Legal advertisements as needed 

▪ Scheduling, correspondence and miscellaneous tasks as needed 

▪ Preparation and distribution of Board of Supervisors’ agenda packets 

▪ Completion of post-Board meeting tasks, including posting of meeting summary and 

approved minutes on website 

▪ Scheduling, setup of auditorium 

▪ Attendance at various meetings; preparation and distribution of meeting notes 

▪ Maintenance of Resolution, Minute and Ordinance books 
 

Meetings 
▪ Staff meeting – Oct. 11, 24 

▪ Budget workshop – Oct. 13 (Prepared minutes) 

 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

 

Denise Walsh 

Community Relations Coordinator 



LOWER PROVIDENCE TOWNSHIP 

INTER-OFFICE CORRESPONDENCE 

 

 

TO:  Board of Supervisors 

     

FROM: Susan C. Law 

   

DATE:  November 4, 2022 

 

SUBJECT: October 2022 Finance Department Monthly Report   

 

 

 

Budget 

• Various meetings with E.J. to discuss budget. Provided multiple items as 

requested. 

• Received EIT and LST projections from Berkheimer for 2022 and 2023. 

Berkheimer is typically very conservative, however their projections were 

significantly higher than what was budgeted. Discussed with E.J. and adjusted 

2022 budget. 

• Updated year-to-date and year-end projections for all funds and reprinted budget 

reports for second budget meeting. 

• Attended second budget workshop on October 13, 2022. 

• Followed up on items as requested at meeting. A large part of October was spent 

on numerous budget related tasks. 

 

 

Miscellaneous 

• Third quarter PSATS Unemployment Comp and LST reporting and payment. 

• Received $10,431.43 - PURTA (Public Utility Report Tax Act). 

• Reported Volunteer Fire Relief Association funds payment to PA AG. 

• Attended Pension Committee meeting. 

• Auditor from the Pennsylvania Department of the Auditor General was onsite to 

audit 2020 and 2021 Liquid Fuels funds. 

• Assisted with various HR items. 

• Sent proxy vote for TCC (Tax Collection Committee) delegate meeting on 

October 26, 2022.  

• Worked with Bill Roth to renew internet contract with Comcast. Our contract 

expired and monthly cost went up significantly. Bill and E.J. signed new contract. 

 

 



 LOWER PROVIDENCE TOWNSHIP 
 

100 Parklane Drive  •  Eagleville, PA 19403  •  www.lowerprovidence.org 

Administration: 610 539-8020   •   Fax: 610 539-6347 

Police:  610-539-5900   •   Fax:  610-630-2219   

 

Fire Marshal & Emergency Management Coordinator 

October 2022 Report 

During the month of October 2022:  

• Lower Providence Fire Department responded to 42 emergency incidents within the 

Township 

• Issued one citation for fire code violations 

o Dollar General had both emergency exits obstructed and was subsequently 

shut down for approximately one week 

▪ Repairs were made and the store has since re-opened. 

• Participated in Montgomery County Emergency Management in-service training 

• Had discussions with IT support to investigate Continuity of Operations sites 

• Issued one special event permits  

o Lower Providence Baptist Church 

• Issued one block party permit 

o Maplewood Mews 

• Investigated one building fire 

o Chickies and Pete’s – Ruled incendiary and arson charges were filed 

• Participated in Command and Control of Incident Operations class presented by the 

National Fire Academy 

• Participated in Chimney Fires and Heating Related Emergencies class presented by 

Montgomery County Fire Academy 

• Participated in Response to Chemical Suicide class presented by Montgomery County 

Fire Academy 

o Coincidentally responded to a suicide attempt by vehicle the following week 

• Conducted plan review for Audubon Square 5 

 

Notes:  



October 2022 Monthly Report 
Human Resources  

 

• Continuing to organize I-9 files, employee files, LOA files, WC Claims files, and electronic files 
on the HR drive and Teams plus documenting and updating HR Processes/Procedures via 
OneNote. 

 

• Continuing to update all new hire forms/HR Forms and creating new forms so all documents are 
current and up to date.  

 

• Continuing to update Org Charts via MS VISIO software- past, present, and future of LPT. 
 

• Continuing to work on ACA reporting and updating the DVHT portal with all our employee 
information around medical and eligibility enrollments. The info is required to be submitted by 
end of October for the dry run.  

 

• Prepared and mailed out all new hire/benefit paperwork to our new Director of Finance who 
starts on Nov. 1.  
 

• Oct 4- Pre-screened a referral for a possible fit for one of our future administrative roles. Also 
spoke to a viable candidate for the IT Specialist position- Chief’s referral.  

 

• Oct. 5- Completed Cybersecurity virtual training along with Public Works employees Completed 
this as a group in the Auditorium. Next training is scheduled for Nov 8. and the recording will be 
shared so anyone that couldn’t make the Oct. 5 or Nov 8 training, we will schedule a separate 
date to meet in the Auditorium. All employees are required to complete this training by the end 
of the year. 

 

• Oct 5- Attended a virtual training on Heart and Lung process.  
 

• Oct. 7 - Assisted with preparation and working the All-Employee Appreciation Picnic which was 
a huge success, and the employees really enjoyed it. Looking forward to continuing with this 
event every year.  
 

• Oct. 11- Met with Sales Rep at Paychex (virtually) to explore the Flex Hiring package which 
includes an Applicant Tracking System. Will continue to research ATS to purchase and 
implement in 2023 hopefully.   
 

• Oct. 14- HR Consortium Meeting in Whitpain Township. 
 

• October 18- e-mailed Medicare Part D Rx Plan eligibility letters to employee’s/retiree’s and 
spouses 65 yr. and older.  
 

• October 18- Pension Committee meeting with CBIZ. 
 

• October 21- Permit Administrator position was posted internally and externally. Posted externally 
on our website, Indeed, FB and LinkedIn. Total resumes received through end of October was 
71. Conducted 5 phone screens and one face to face scheduled for Nov. 4.  
 

• October 25- Finance Department transition discussion in preparation for Rich’s start date on 
Nov. 1. 



 

• October 26- Live demo of the Paychex Flex Hiring and Onboarding module. 
 

• Workers Compensation   
▪ Breakdown of claim(s)  

• Total injuries to report – 5 

• Incidents only- 4 

• Disabled- 1 

• Modified duty – 0 

• Follow up on existing claims – 0 
 

• Property Damage Claims 

• One claim reported- damage to property  



 

 

 

 

LOWER PROVIDENCE TOWNSHIP 

PARKS AND RECREATION 

 
MONTHLY REPORT  

October 2022 
 

Administration: 

 

• Daily communication with Joe Chillano, Director of Public Works, to discuss job tasks/duties for   

parks crew.   

• Met with Mike Nester about placement of a bench and trees that were purchased for Eagleville 

Park.  

• Met with the Park and Recreation staff throughout the month to prepare for future programs/trips. 

• Worked on preparing for Community Fall Festival event with Karen Barron, Karen Hegedus and 

Rylie Cox (intern)– set-up itinerary, supplies ordered, meeting with public works staff, sign 

ordered, signs for fun zones, Trunk or Treat, Tree Lighting, Pumpkins ordered, booklets made, 

confirm DJ and food vendors. 

• Scheduled a meeting with the Fire Marshal and the Township Manager on weather conditions and 

safety concerns with Hurricane Ian. We were all in agreement to cancel the very popular Fall Fest 

event. 

• Met with Jessie Kemper, Perkiomen Watershed Conservancy and Jean Akers, from the Park 

Board to walk Redtail and MARA grounds to see where it would be best to plant trees to submit 

the TreeVitalize grant.  

• Work on securing Trunkers for Trunk or Treat. Also, work on gift baskets for prizes from LP 

businesses. 

• Our Annual Trunk or Treat was back in full force this year and it was a big hit. We 

occupied the entire lower lot with Trunkers (21) and approximately 800-1000 treaters. 

The Trunks were creatively decorated and three Trunker’s were awarded gift baskets as 

prizes for the best decorated trunks. We are grateful for our sponsors McMahon 

Associates, Inc, Redner’s Market, and Wawa. The kids and parents really enjoyed 

themselves and I think this event has become one the residents’ favorite events to attend. 

I would also like to thank all the Lower Providence departments that participated at this 

yeas event.  It was great to see them all having FUN at the event: Police, Fire, 

Ambulance, Library, Park Board and LP Optimist. 

• I attended the Montgomery County Senior Games committee kick of meeting for Senior 

Games 2023. I am the volunteer chairperson for this year’s games taking place the week 

of May 1-5,2023. If you are interested in volunteering at an event to help support the 

seniors in Montgomery County, please let me know. 

• We sold 12 discounted Movie Tavern tickets in October. Movie Tavern tickets are sold for $8.50 

year -round.  

• We sold 15 discounted Regal Movie ticket. Movie tickets are sold at a discounted price of $10.00 

per ticket year- round. 

• We continue to offer Memorial Donation Program which allows residents to purchase a bench, a 

tree, or a brick in a loved one’s honor and have it placed in a special location in one of our 

beautiful parks. In the month of October 1 bench, 2 trees and 1 brick were purchased, all for 

Eagleville Park. 

• We continue to offer our Hometown Heroes Program and have been replacing the banners 

throughout Eagleville Park as they are purchased. 
 

 

 



 

 

 

Parks: 

• GRL landscaping continues to mow and maintain all township properties throughout the 

township. We have an open line of communication with GRL and his staff if any concerns occur. 

The mowing for 2022 will conclude the week of November 7th.  

• Continue to communicate with Mike Nester and Zach on any matters that need attention in the 

parks and or prepare for future special events. 

• We have a few remaining pavilion rentals reserved for the month of October. 

• Parks staff continues to keep all area parks maintained throughout the fall. 

 

Eagleville Park: 

• Prepared the park for Fall Fest, only to have to turn around and cancel our event due to Hurricane 

Ian.  

• Timothy Trail in Eagleville Park needed a clean up after Hurricane Ian. The parks crew removed, 

cut back, and cleared trees along the trail making it safe for residents to use. 

 

Eskie Park: 

• I ordered 4 Black Gum trees and 3 Northern Red Oak trees to begin Phase 2 of our Tree canopy 

plantings at Eskie Park. The trees will be installed in November. 

 

Evansburg Point Park: 

• The trail at Evansburg Point Park was cleared of debris and tree branches to make the trail usable 

to residents that walk there.  The parks crew removed, cut back, and cleared many obstructions on 

the trial due to Hurricane Ian. Also, the foot bridge on the trail needed a few repairs.  The trail is 

now reopened and safe to use. 

 

Redtail Park:  

• Jessie Kemper from the Perkiomen Watershed Conservancy and I are working together on the 

TreeVitalize grant for Redtail Park. Jessie Kemper submitted the grant application to plant 100 

native trees to prevent stormwater runoff from entering the tributary. The Township’s 

responsibility will be to prep the planting area, mowing around trees for the next 5 years and 

watering the planting when needed. I discussed our responsibilities with the Township Manager 

and Public Works Director, and they are both in agreement with this project. 

 

Programs/Events for the month of October: 

• Yoga in the Park 

• Young Rembrandt’s Creative Drawing 

• Firebird Theatre  

• Snapology Programs 

• Podcasting 101 

• 34th Annual Community Fall Festival -Cancelled due to Hurricane Ian 

• Trunk or Treat in Eagleville Park 

 

Upcoming Events: 

• 14th Annual Community Tree Lighting  

• Santa Hotline 

• Gingerbread House Holiday Decorating Contest 

• Caring and Sharing Program 

 

Facilities Maintenance: 

• Continue to communicate with Mike Nester and Zach on needs of the parks and installations of 

benches and trees in the parks. 

• Continue to clean Eagleville, Eskie and Evansburg Park bathrooms. They are on a cleaning 

rotation from April through November. 

• Continue to maintain the bathrooms at the MARA complex keep them stocked for fall ball. 



 

• Trash is picked up weekly or as needed at area parks. 

• Continue to check and replenish Mutt Mitts in area parks. 

• Continue to inspect area parks daily and make repairs as needed. 

 

Daily Tasks:  

• Return calls and emails daily. 

• Respond to requests from the residents.  

• Continue to participate in Zoom/ in person meetings and webinar with PRPS.  

• Continue to monitor and inspect area parks. 

• Update P & R web page, Facebook, Instagram, MyRec and the marquee as needed 

 
Respectfully Submitted,  

 

Jane C. Delaney 

Director of Parks and Recreation 



 LOWER PROVIDENCE TOWNSHIP 
POLICE DEPARTMENT 

 

100 Parklane Drive  •  Eagleville, PA 19403  •  www.lowerprovidence.org 

Phone:  610-539-5901   •   Fax:  610-630-2219   

 

Michael Jackson, Chief of Police 

 

 
Submitted By: Michael Jackson, Chief of Police 

 
POLICE FLEET  Jun-22 Jul-22 Aug-22 Sep-22 Oct-22 Total 

Miles Traveled 24,829 19,839 23,859 23,870 23,570 237,599 
 

      

INCIDENTS Jun-22 Jul-22 Aug-22 Sep-22 Oct-22 Total 

Police Activity (CAD) 1,904 1,934 2,158 2,133 2,064 19,169 

         

ENFORCEMENT ACTIVITY Jun-22 Jul-22 Aug-22 Sep-22 Oct-22 Total 

Traffic Stops 437 413 564 457 295 4,126 

Traffic Citations 103 116 178 177 170 1,238 

Non-Traffic Citations 10 4 11 7 18 96 

Criminal Arrests 49 39 46 30 25 350 

Foot and Bike Patrols 195 179 237 228 176 1904 

Traffic Details 161 147 163 133 92 1392 

Public Contacts (Minimum) 890 860 1074 954 848 8,794 

Formal Personnel Complaints 0 0 0 0 0 1 

Personnel Compliments 2 2 5 5 3 26 

         

JUVENILE CONTACTS Jun-22 Jul-22 Aug-22 Sep-22 Oct-22 Total 

Juvenile Contacts 43 41 51 41 44 444 

Juveniles Petitioned 2 0 1 1 2 10 

Warnings Issued 11 11 15 6 10 102 

Citations Issued 3 4 2 1 1 17 

Referral to Other Agencies 1 2 2 0 1 12 

        

ACCIDENTS Jun-22 Jul-22 Aug-22 Sep-22 Oct-22 Total 

Total Number of Accidents 56 30 41 42 48 435 

Reportable Accidents 23 13 12 18 17 156 

Non-Reportable Accidents 33 17 29 24 31 279 

 
 



 LOWER PROVIDENCE TOWNSHIP 
POLICE DEPARTMENT 

 

100 Parklane Drive  •  Eagleville, PA 19403  •  www.lowerprovidence.org 

Phone:  610-539-5901   •   Fax:  610-630-2219   

 

Michael Jackson, Chief of Police 

 

 
 

ALARM RESPONSES Jun-22 Jul-22 Aug-22 Sep-22 Oct-22 Total 

Total Alarms 51 68 40 73 47 558 

Security Alarms 36 53 24 41 27 388 

Fire Alarms 15 15 16 32 20 170 

       

DETECTIVE DIVISION Jun-22 Jul-22 Aug-22 Sep-22 Oct-22 Total 

Investigations 55 34 77 37 26 459 

       

SUBPOENAS FOR COURT  Jun-22 Jul-22 Aug-22 Sep-22 Oct-22 Total 

District Court 38-1-20 37 29 45 125 67 568 

Montgomery County  2 8 3 6 4 43 

All Others 0 0 0 1 0 10 

       

DUI TASK FORCE Jun-22 Jul-22 Aug-22 Sep-22 Oct-22 Total 

Reimbursed Overtime Hours 0 0 64 30 8 134 

        

AGGRESSIVE DRIVING Jun-22 Jul-22 Aug-22 Sep-22 Oct-22 Total 

Reimbursed Overtime Hours 5 0 0 24 0 78 

              

DRUG TASK FORCE Jun-22 Jul-22 Aug-22 Sep-22 Oct-22 Total 

Reimbursed Overtime Hours 18 0 0 0 0 66 

       

PA LIQUOR CONTROL BOARD Jun-22 Jul-22 Aug-22 Sep-22 Oct-22 Total 

Reimbursed Overtime Hours 9 0 24 24 21 139 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 LOWER PROVIDENCE TOWNSHIP 
POLICE DEPARTMENT 

 

100 Parklane Drive  •  Eagleville, PA 19403  •  www.lowerprovidence.org 

Phone:  610-539-5901   •   Fax:  610-630-2219   

 

Michael Jackson, Chief of Police 

 

 

The following is a list of Community Relations details for October 2022:   

 

On Saturday, October 8, D Squad participated in a Cars vs. Cancer car show held in the Eagleville Plaza 

Shopping Center by choosing the winner of the “Officer’s Choice” award. 

 

On Tuesday, October 11, Lt. Hopkins and Sgt. Stead met with representatives of the Anderson School 

to discuss safety plans. 

 

On Wednesday, October 12, Sgt. Stead met with a Methacton High School student regarding his negative 

attitude toward law enforcement. 

 

On Thursday, October 13, Sgt. Stead met with representatives from the Montgomery County District 

Attorney’s Office regarding the implementation of a drug awareness program in the Methacton School 

District. 

 

On Monday, October 17, Sgt. Stead provided a presentation on “blood spatter” investigations to several 

Methacton High School forensic science classes. 

 

On Monday, October 17, Officer Barber provided a tour of the police station to a local Girl Scout Daisy 

troop. 

 

On Wednesday, October 19, Lt. Hopkins and Sgt. Stead met with representatives from the Lincoln 

Center and Norristown Police Department regarding ongoing school and community issues involving 

students. 

 

On Thursday, October 20, Sgt. Stead gave a presentation to a group of girl scouts at Arrowhead 

Elementary School regarding personal and online safety. 

 

On Friday, October 21, Sgt. Stead assisted Woodland Elementary School personnel with various safety 

drills.  

 

On Saturday, October 22, D Squad participated in the Lower Providence Township’s Parks and 

Recreation Department’s annual Trunk or Treat event by passing out Halloween candy. 

 

On Saturday, October 22, Sgt. Stead assisted the Methacton High School’s Black Student Union with 

setting up its annual food drive held in front of the Shoemaker House. 

 

On Thursday, October 27, Sgt. Stead joined Arcola Intermediate and Skyview Upper Elementary School 

administrators along with their school security personnel to discuss school safety and community 

concerns.  
 



 LOWER PROVIDENCE TOWNSHIP 
POLICE DEPARTMENT 

 

100 Parklane Drive  •  Eagleville, PA 19403  •  www.lowerprovidence.org 

Phone:  610-539-5901   •   Fax:  610-630-2219   

 

Michael Jackson, Chief of Police 

 

On Friday, October 28, Sgt. Stead assisted Arrowhead Elementary School personnel with various safety 

drills. 

 

On Monday, October 31, Sgt. Stead participated in the police department’s annual Halloween “Golden 

Ticket” giveaway by providing bags of candy to trick-or-treaters in the community.  The winner receives 

a ride to school from a police officer.   

 

The following is a list of notable TSU activities for October 2022:   

 

On Tuesday, October 18, Lt. Hopkins and Sgt. Stead attended a meeting at Franconia Township Police 

Department regarding the Bus Patrol school bus safety program. 

 

There were a total of eighty-seven (87) Bus Patrol submissions resulting in sixty-six (66) civil citations 

being issued to drivers passing school buses with their red lights flashing.  

 

There were three (3) traffic complaints made by residents regarding various issues. 

 

During the month, the radar speed display trailer was deployed on Brimfield Road, Sandpiper Drive, and 

Pawlings Road after complaints regarding complaints about speeding vehicles. 

 

Youth Aid Panel: 

 

One juvenile was submitted to the Montgomery County District Attorney’s Office Youth Aid Panel 

Program during the month.   

 

Curfew: 

 

During the month, there were eight (8) violations of the Lower Providence Township curfew 

ordinance. 

 



LOWER PROVIDENCE TOWNSHIP 

PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT 

MONTHLY REPORT 

OCTOBER 2022 

Below is a list of some items that the Public Works Department accomplished during the month of 

October. 

• Meet with Jane Delaney daily to review/ discuss departmental needs 

• All PA One call notifications were reviewed, field marked and responded to appropriately 

• Director reviewed road opening permits, performed inspections where required  

• The department completed various and multiple building maintenance tasks  

• Street signs were repaired/replaced 

• Meet with PW Foreman to discuss work assignments and scheduling 

• Director had several meetings with staff on various topics 

• Mechanics performed routine maintenance on Township fleet and equipment 

• Director approved bills associated with the department 

• Janitor cleaned our buildings and Parks comfort stations during the month 

• PW & Parks guys did trash runs twice this week in our Parks. Every Monday and Friday 

• Director returned phone calls and emails addressing residents’ concerns  

• Director worked on the monthly report 

• Potholes were patched, crews went out with hot asphalt 

• Storm sewer inlets were cleaned prior to any rainstorms 

• Multiple storm sewer inlet on various Twp roadways were repaired in place. Work associated 

includes cleaning out the inlet, repairing with brick, lentels and concrete. Replacing the top and 

restoration work. 

• I continued to work with our Twp Engineer and Fema for our reimbursement of funds  

• Traffic signals and streetlights were repaired during the month of August 

• A crew member came in over the weekends to clean for pavilion rentals 

• I continued to work with McMahon and Twp Manager on the APS installation for 

Parklane/Ridge and Eagleville traffic signal, quotes are starting to come in for the work  

• Delinquent properties were mowed with high grass violations, determined by Codes Dept 

• St Gab’s field was mowed by the Parks guys 

• Parks members inspected all playground equipment during the month of October 

• The PW Director prepared our 2023 Equipment Rental Contract, solicited quotes, and will make 

a recommendation to the BOS on awarding 

• Members of the PW Dept cleaned up the Casselberry House 

• I updated our road rating system 



• All members of the department attended the annual Montgomery County Public Works 

Association trade show which was held in Oaks 

• Crews laid crosswalks down along Van Buren Ave, a total of seven were completed 

• Started our final roadside mowing for the year 

• Parks crews used roadside mowing to trim up the areas around the walking paths at Eagleville 

and Eslie Parks 

•  Crews used an aluminum roof coating for Building C’s roof at the PW facility. Buildings are 

going to need a major overhaul in the near future 

• We crack sealed between the curb and roadway in the entire neighborhood of Peacock Drive 

per the request of the residents 

• Members of the crew planted 4 new trees in Eagleville Park 

• I had an on-site meeting with a wetland scientist to clear up an issues Fema may have with our 

Hurricane Ida work  

• We prepped and painted the truck frame for 66-48. Came out beautiful 

• Parks repaired 2 footbridges along the wooded path at Evansburg Point Park 

• Finally, we will begin preparing all our trucks and equipment for the upcoming winter season  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 Respectfully submitted, 

 Joseph R. Chillano 

      

 

 


















































































































































































































	Native American Heritage Month
	2a Minutes BOS 2022-11-03
	2a Minutes EAC 2022-09-19
	2a Minutes PR 2022-09-20
	2a Planning Commission 2022-05-25
	2a Sewer Authority 2022-09-12
	2b Community Development
	2b Community Relations
	2b Finance
	2b Fire Marshal
	2b Human Resources
	2b Parks and Recreation
	2b Police
	2b Public Works
	2c1 Bill Pay List
	2c2 Treasurers Report 
	2c3a Courts at Brynwood Phase I
	2c3b Courts at Brynwood Phase II



